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Senator Joan Heckerman: SB 2425 develops a proposal, this past summer | visited state
agency and found the office and person | needed. After starting to visit | had to go to the south
campus, went there and visited with them then told | had to go back to the capitol, if this is
happening to me than it is happening to others. It makes it harder for citizens to access

agencies. | think it would make for efficiency not only in duplication of services.

Senator Aaron Krauter: What | want to do is talk about conceptual things. This is something
that generated conversation, but need to go though logical processes those. Idea that we are
seeing is increase in state agencies needs, FTE's, actual requirements, we have situations
where we need tb look at square footage.

See attached testimony #1.

First thing | want to bring to your attention is the Capitol Complex Master Plan. Not something
you throwA together, this complex is not for us today but future generations. Capitol grounds
planning committee has plans for additional buildings on the grounds. As you go around the
main circle, to the left there is a building planned. To the east of the Highway building there is

another building planned. To think that we are not prepared to do something, the steps have

. started.
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See attached testimony #2

See attached testimony #3

if you go on there is a page that talks about parking, 2 things, good plan & proposal for
buildings on there.

See attached testimony #4.

See attached testimony #5.

The way we drafted he bills is that the people that deal with this, asked them to put together a
plan and say they need more square footage. As you go through this list you can summarize
all the agencies that have leased places around the city. Economics of good value for the tax
payer bring back to one location, best use of taxpayer. |

See attached testimony #5.

I hdpe I have not bombarded you, but we are trying to get the best value for what we are
paying. With that | will stand for questions. The concept is that we are saying that we are going
to come back for the best value.

Senator Dever: This all comes down to dollars. You are asking to put together a proposal that
addresses the facilities on and off the grounds and how to get greater efficiencies.

Senator Krauter: Yes that is correct. We are seeing in the bills that agencies are expanding
and would like that floor. It is hard for OMB to propose a building of that nature unless they are
given some direction.

Senator Cook: The Bank of North Dakota my guess is that when the decision was made to
build a new one, it was done through appropriations, was there any discussion of having it be
built on the Capitol grounds?

Senator Krauter: | recall that, they wanted to be located in the business community

downtown.
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Senator Cook: | know that there is a difference in construction cost. Building on capitol
grounds have to follow different codes?

Senator Horne: Did not the chief justice talk about the need for space in the building?
Senator Krauter: The survey that came back shows an increase in district court.

Senator Horne: | think that the AG's department is also looking for more space.

Senator David O’Connell: Staff looked up the numbers from years ago. We looked at this and
came up with last year Burleigh County got 3.8 mills last year. What would go along with that is
that we would kill the real estate business and | think that we need to look out for tax payers. |
have a lot of constituents that want to testify but can’t park close. That is where | am coming
from. It's the taxpayer’'s money 7.6 mills biennium.

Senator Dever: The majority leader likes to point out that the time the capitol was built they
only occupied the lower 6 floor,

John Boyle: Director of Facilities ménagement with OMB. We build our buildings to ast 100’s
of years, and we build them to code. Our buildings should last longer because we build them
sturdier. Every year we get estimates and earlier in the session | was asked to update the
parking ramp figures. What would a typical investor have as a rate of return? Why wouldn't we
have one of them use those funds to build a building? If they wanted to receive 5% rate of
return on their investment? We are getting closer, though. They had a deal that they were
going to purchase a building, but it was $22 a sq foot. | assisted them in finding a new space
$13-15 for existing buildings depending on where they are located. Until the dollars get clo_ser
it has always been my thought to build on the campus and continue to lease space. 150,000
square feet, 80% would be for office space. Master plan would call for human services to
vacate judicial wing. If we bill them at a $24 sq ft rate it would give them a 5%‘ rate of return.

When you add in things $6 a square foot.
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Senator Cook: Game and Fish could invest it? $24 rate of return is if built on capitol ground?
John Boyle: Yes, because of the parking ramp that needs to be built.

Senator Cook: And building to a 200 year spec. what if we had done that for BND?

John Boyle: If we would do that it would have been more than 20. My responsibility is for
buildings and ground stops at the sidewalk. | assist agencies in negotiating in leases, mainly in
Bismarck area.

Senator Dever: Are you in a position to do what the bill calls for?

John Boyle: Yes.

Senator Oehlke: What is the health department paying for square foot rent in judicial wing?
John Boyle: $9.38 a square foot. and that is because we can only bill them what our costs
are. Usually there is rent, common area cést. We don't get to add $15 a square foot

Senator Oehlke: How long do you amortize?

John Boyle: That is how they used to do it in the private sector. As the debt service gets paid
off the lease goes down. That is up to the legisiature, if it is up to the land department | would
not like to see it bonded, because there is interest on top of that.

Senator O’Connell:  was at surplus building; it has a steel roof, and no insulation. Heating bill
is really high. People were trying to work and | just Qvanted to call that to your attention.
Senator Dever: Thinking of that facility it would not fit to be on the cap grounds

Senator O’Connell: It is not fit for human beings in my opinion.
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Senator Krauter: For the record my name is Aaron Krauter state senator from district 31. See
attachment #1
Senator Dever: How do they allocate the cost of property we don't lease?

Senator Krauter: There is a number they factor in.

Senator Dever: | guess | see the merit of this.

.Senator Oehlke: Is this something that at the same time in the same study should consider
the flow of governmental activity in the Bismarck area? Maybe there is a better way to put
things in the natural order.

Senator Cook: What agencies could be in another location?

Senator Dever: You are suggesting that this is a good idea but needed to be stated in a
different way.

Senator Cook: Talk about the central location of the different way.

Senator Nelson: Take a look at the lease and come back with this plan? Maybe we can say
instead of a plan for office buildings that we need a plan for an impiementation of a master

plan.
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Senator Horne: | think that Senator Cook is on the right track, we could say that we want to
direct the OMB to review the centralization of offices as opposed to other parts of the plan.
Senator Dever. Maybe we should play with the language and come back with it tomorrow.
Senator Cook: The most efficient way to have a central location, you also have to look at
parking and traffic flow.

Senator Oehike: You would think it would be naturai that someone would be able to find
answers to his problem in that one place.

Senator Dever: The crime lab doesn’t need to be located in the AG's office.

Senator Cook: AG's office is another example. They have buildings all over town.

Senator Dever: There are several different divisions within the AG'’s office that need to be
located together.

Senator Cook: There still could be some consolidation there too.

Senator Nelson: John Boyle has an idea for 4 more hearing rooms.

Senator Cook: That is a whole other issue. That will involve fire rood, exit doors, and making
those room smaller. That is something | would like to see.

Senator Dever: How about if it said something about studying different facets of governments.
Senator Nelson: Space allocations for each department.

Senator Cook: | have never worded a study and they come back with the correct way to say it.
Senator Dever: He will have to prepare a report to present to the Legislative Council by

October 2010.
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Senator Horne: On the amendments, the consideration of the master plan, the way it is written
is sounds like they are going to build buildings.

Senator Nelson: | think that Senator Fiébiger is concerned with is that there are things that
are not getting done.

’ Senator Dever: Would it sound better than to say “consideration shall include
recommendations of the master plan and consideration of construction of buildings.” Or take
construction of buildings out?

Senator Horne: | think we want to keep that in there

Senator Nelson: Consideration shall include recommendations of the master plan. Then say
consideration shall include constructions of buildings.

Senator Oehlke: The way | read it that is what it says now.

Senator Horne: Put consideration in there twice?

Senator Oehlke: Seems redundant to me.

Senator Cook: And to what degree buildings on the capito! are efficient.

Senator Horne: Consideration of master plan?

br . Senator Dever: How about substitute ‘for’ for ‘and’.
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Senator Horne: On the amendments, the consideration of the master plan, the way it is written
is sounds like they are going to build buildings.

Senator Nelson: | think that Senator Fiebiger is concerned with is that there are things that
are not getting done.

. Senator Dever: Would it sound better than to say “consideration shall include
recommendations of the master plan and consideration of construction of buildings.” Or take
construction of buildings out?

Senator Horne: | think we want to keep that in there

Senator Nelson: Consideration shall include recommendations of the master plan. Then say
consideration shall include constructions of buildings.

Senator Oehlke: The way | read it that is what it says now.

Senator Horne: Put consideration in there twice?

Senator Oehlke: Seems redundant to me.

Senator Cook: And to what degree buildings on the capitof are efficient.

Senator Horne: Consideration of master plan and the need of the new buiiding?
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. Senator Dever. How about substitute ‘for’ for ‘and’. Does that make sense? What are the
thoughts of the committee on the amendments?

Senator Horne made a motion to adopt the amendments with a second by Senator Nelson.
The motion carried 5-0.

Senator Horne made a motion for a do pass as amended on SB2425 with a second by Senator

Nelson. The motion passed 5-0 with Senator Horne carrying the bill.
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. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2425 /

Page 1, line 3, replace "proposal” with "report” and replace "office buildings" with "all facilities
occupied by state agencies”

Page 1, line 7, replace "assembly" with "council” and replace "plan for" with "report including
the location, expenses, and square footage requirements of all facilities occupied by
each state agency. The report must include recommendations for relocation of any
entity to achieve improvements in service to the public along with optimal efficiencies in
usage of space and cost. The report must include recommendations within the master
plan for construction of buildings on the capitol grounds.”

Page 1, remove lines 8 through 10

Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2425: Government and Veterans Affalrs Committee (Sen. Dever, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (5 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2425 was placed
on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 3, replace "proposal” with "report” and replace "office buildings” with "all facilities
occupied by state agencies”
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Minutes:

ROLL CALL. ALL PRESENT. EXCEPT REP. FROSETH.
Chairman Grande: We will open the hearing on SB 2425. Clerk read the title.
Senator Joan Heckaman, District 23, New Rockford, ND: This bill is a

. proposal for office buildings on the Capital Grounds. We think that there are
three important reasons and maybe you will get a lot of others from the

~delegation that is in the room here this morning. But | am going to talk about

three things just briefly. The first reason | think its important is | think that
financial aspect. We rent a lot of office space out in Burleigh County and in the
City of Bismarck and | think that when you see those figures some of that will be
amazing to you. As a result of renting office space | also think we duplicate a lot
of administrative duties and equipment out there. So that could be a savings to
us as a State. | think that there is a need for this and as you here testimonies
this morning from agencies that they are cramped, they need some space, |

.thought that maybe it would be fun to do a field trip to the basement today but |
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. changed my mind on that. It would be an opportunity sometime to go down to
the basement and see the people that work down there and probably what §
would consider a safety issue and fire hazards and also | think it would be a
convenience for our citizens.‘ While | only have a short testimony today | am
going to tell you a little bit of what happened to me this summer. This past
summer | needed some information from one of the State agencies and so |
came to the Capital here and went to the agency and they said “Oh yes” we have
somebody that would really be a good person for you to talk to but they are at our
other campus. So | went and got in the car and drove to the other campus and
found the person that | needed to talk to there and got the information and then |
said | need something on and | think this would help me if | had something else.
They then said “Well, now you need to go back to the Capital and go back to the
agency and get that.” So | know that | am a big girl and | can handle that but |
think as far as our citizens in our State having things in a convenient place would
be good. We have a beautiful campus. We have a statue here on the prairie
and | think putting our agencies all in one place would be a real benefit to us. But
| think that we can make it a real beautiful setting here for ND. With that | am
going to turn my portion over to Senator Krauter because he has all the data for
you. | will stand for any questions if you have any that | can answer.

.Rep. Amerman: In the Engrossed bill what was amended?
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. Sen. Heckaman: Just a little bit of the wording even though | don’t have the bill
in front of me.

Chairman Grande: It adds in the language of location, expenses, square
footage, and requirements of all facilities occupied by each State agency. It just
speiled it out a little further is what the language had done. |t basically did not
change the context of the bill at all.

Senator Aaron Krauter, District 31: In front of you there is a piece of
legislation there, | think it is something that the time has finally come. in the
beginning of the session some of us on the Senate side were seeing
appropriation bills come in where additional square footage was needed or a
request was needed. We came to the conclusion that we better start this
process and figuring out how do we meet these needs of the agencies that are
requesting this? In that process our fear was that we just don’t go and
appropriate XX amount of dollars or give them permission to go lease another
spot. We thought that we need to do this as a study and look into it and make
sure we get it done the right way. The more we talked about it the more we
came to the realization that we have a system in place and we need to use that
system and that system is something that maybe some of you have been
involved in and that is the Capital Grounds Planning Commission. They have

.done their work over the years, in fact in the mid-80’s | served on that committee
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. for a couple of interims and it was one of those where you really got to
understand what was the history behind the campus here and why things were
done they way they were done and at that time there had been some master
plans and they had put together the whole reasons of its existence. In that
discussion we came up with the idea of we need to take a look at it from the
standpoint of getting that Capital Grounds Planning Commission, Facility
Management, and they all need to be brought into this process because that was
in another time and we need to put in a study and then the Legislature will
studies it and then we bring everybody in and we re-create the wheel and we
have more confusion. So the bill was drafted in the way it is right now that we
are asking facilities management, part of OMB, to take a look at this and put their
thoughts together with the agencies and they work with leases with the agencies,
they do all the work within the campuses here, they work leases here in
Bismarck, they do more of that to try to make sure they get the best value for
their dollar. They need to figure in things like does the lease include; utilities and
they are just doing more and more of that. It just made more sense if we put
something together that says it the way it does here. So what | have done
instead of writing testimony | gave you some data that really made us in the
Senate look at this and say we have to get a hold of this. From the standpoint

.that somebody would say that there are no House members on this bill. Let me
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. tell you when it came to the bill deadlines, the House had theirs done and we
finally got the bill draft put together and quick put some names on it and you can
see that Senator Holmberg, Senator Wardner, and myself and we submitted it
and got it going. As | can see from the room here that there is a sincere desire
from the State Agencies that we need to move forward on this process. So what
| want to do is walk you through the documents that | handed out. The first one
(See Attachment # 1), | can see that when they copied it and punched the holes
they punched out number one and it is the one that talks about 2007 — 2009
State Agency leases. It is unfortunately an 8.5 x 11 sheet, it is the one with the
fine lines on it. This is a partial list of the leased facility square footage and it is
just a list leasing in the Bismarck-Mandan area. The left hand column tells you
the agencies and you can go across and see the address, the square footage,
the annual rent. But | want you to go to the very back page, as an appropriation
person | always go to the back page, and look at the bottom of the back page.
You will see that the very last one that is listed is Workforce Safety and
Insurance, but go to the total, in the Bismarck-Mandan area, it is 395,000 square
feet and it is about 3.7 million dollars and the average is about $9.52 square foot.
So just in this area that is how much we are spending for square footage. Now |
also did it for Statewide and that is another hand out | could have given you but |

.thought let's just save some paper. But State wide it is 684,981 square feet for a



Page 6

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Senate Bill 2425

Hearing Date: 03/13/2009

. total of 6.7 million about $9.82 square foot. Now the details on that square
footage cost | will leave that up to John Boyle because that his job and he knows
what he is doing there. What is included and what is not included. But that just
gives you a reference on how much money we are spending for the biennium in
our leasing just in the Bismarck-Mandan area versus the State wide. So with that
then go to the next hand out (See Attachment 2) which is another 8.5 x 11 and
what | did was | asked Legislative Council to give me some history of analysis of
what has happened with leasing for the years 2006-2007 versus 2007-2008,
2008-2009, 2009-2010 and then 2010-2011, what is proposed in the budget? To
see what has changed in the last number of years as far as the increase in
square footage, the increase in price per square footage, and also what kind of
affects us as far as dollars. You can go through there and you can see some
agencies where they have actually increased their square footage. Now | will
again draw you to the very back page and look at the numbers. The grand total
on Page 3, in 2006-2007 year it was 279,000 square feet to lease, in this
proposed budget it is up to 329,000 square feet, that is about a 50,000 square
foot increase. Then you go to the far right column you will see that for lease
payments what were leasing goes from 6.5 million to 8.2 million, now that is all
State Agencies. It is just not the Bismarck-Mandan area. As you can see there

.is an increase in there and those increases are naturally because of increases in
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. square footage but also as those leases come due they renegotiate and those
costs go up also. So with those financial numbers it just makes you start to think
are we getting the best value for our tax dollars as far as our leasing. s there a
better way of doing this? Is it time that we need to look at the Master Plan and
maybe get building a building on campus and analyze that from the standpoint do
we want to pay that many dollars every year, every biennium, versus maybe
putting it into some bricks and mortar on campus and having an asset to go with
that. With that lets go to the very last handout (See Attachment # 3) and that is
the one where it is the Capital Grounds Master Plan and that is from the
document that Capital Grounds Planning Commission has put together. You can
read through that at your leisure but what | recommend for you to do is turn to
Page 3 with the diagram with the schematic of the campus on it. You have to
understand that this was done in 2000, so it has been awhile, 8 or 9 years, but
stilt it is a Master Plan they have been working on through time. There is some
real legitimate work that has been behind this and also the work has some
financial numbers that have been put together. What are the cost and need for
some of these things? These buildings and the pians for parking and things of
that nature at that date in 2000, but | just wanted to draw your attention that there
is a plan here on campus and maybe it is time for us to say Facilities

.Management within OMB take a look at this and then report back to the
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Legislative Council in the interim what your findings are. | will just draw your
attention to the buildings that are circled as item # 9 on there. If you know the
campus here, we all know it from the ground, but if you look from the air, if you
look basically down to the mall and then to the West, you will see a Building # 9,
there is a plan for it there and then also above that there is a plan for a parking
area and a parking ramp. If you also go over to the DOT Building which is # 4
and you go back up to # 3 that is the Judicial Wing and you will see that from the
East out there, there are two more buildings that are circled as # 9. So there is
some thought and there is some logic behind that they have put together in the
Master Plan. The last thing | will mention to the committee this morning is that
when we had some of these State Agencies come before us in appropriations
and had these reguests, you listen to their testimony and you challenge yourself
to think, Is this the right thing, is this really legitimate? | have to tell you that in
most cases | felt that it was very legitimate and | made a few phone calls and
emails and | asked the Supreme Court to come over this morning and give us
their thoughts. The Attorney General's Office, Department of Human Services,
and the Agriculture Department because | think each one is unique and what has
happened over the years on how we built the Judicial Wing and all of sudden it is

no longer used by the Judiciary. There are some things that have happened
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. there and | think it will be good to hear from them to see that there is an actual
sincere need that is out there. So with that | will stand for any questions.
Chairman Grande: Any questions from the committee?

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: What is the number of State Employees that
,have increased as well? Maybe our government is growing too big and too fast
because | am looking at the square footage here and have you seen the
numbers for the number of State Employees compared to our population?

Sen. Krauter: We all know that FTE numbers have increased. | could ask
Legislative Council to give you that history just to put it on here for you. It is real
and it is understandable. | also think that through our actions as Legislators we
have approved those and we have been pretty diligent in saying yes and saying
no a lot. | think that everything that is out there is legitimate. | can also tell you
that in Senate Appropriations right now we have a list of FTE’s that are vacant
that we are scrutinizing as far as if they have been vacant for one month, one
year, two years, and we analyze that very closely. Your question is a valid one
because we don’t want necessarily to program them we want to make sure we
are providing the right government jobs. If you want that we can ask Legislative
Council to get that for you.

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: | would appreciate that. Thank You. It

. locks like you are going to have OMB study this do you foresee any Legislators
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on this study because | know there is another study of a Master Plan, Bill # 1403,
to do a study as well.

Sen. Krauter: No. | have learned over the years, that facilities management are
professionals and they do a good job at what they are doing, and their history
behind the negotiation of leases, how they work with other agencies, and they
have a good understanding of what is happening out there, they are to prepare
this report and submit it to Legislative Council and | would suspect that
Legislative Council is then going to take that and make recommendations. There
is another piece of Legislation that has a group of studying that is going to be
done, this is going to be something that our State Government is doing the work
on, preparing the data, and then to present it to us. We could go out and create
a study and go out re-create the wheel and then try to do all these things but let's
get the data put together first. | have been around these scenarios where we
study something and we come back and we didn’t get the right information we
were looking for and we get frustrated. But here let's try to get our good
information from OMB first and then at that point you can move it to the next
step. Buildings are not built in one biennium, | know that. It takes a process,
whereby, you get everyone on board, you make sure you make the right

decisions, the right information, so that is kind of where | am going with this.
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. Chairman Grande: In this survey that you handed out some of the agencies are
using other funds versus State funds for their leases? Do you know what the
breakdown is on here?

Sen. Krauter: If you take Exhibit # 2 and go to the far right column, that is broke
into three sections, the first section is square footage, the second section is
square footage cost, and the far right column is the total funds. The first column
in all those categories is by biennium'’s, general fund, and the next one is total
funds, so you just subtract the two and you will find out what the special funds or
federal funds or other funds were. So just take for example the very first one at
the top; OMB, Risk Management @ 1600 East Century Ave, Bismarck, ND.
There are zero general funds in it but it is a total of $42,380 so that is special
funds that are providing their lease payment there. Now to go further into that I'd
have to go to risk management and find out if it is some federal dollars or some
fees that are collected but it is just not general fund appropriations.

Chairman Grande: So the first time you see that is if you go down that line to
Attorney General Professional North and portions of it are General Fund and
portions of it are other things.

Sen. Krauter: Thank You. | had not seen this one.

Rep. Kasper: | am somewhat surprised by your comment that you weren't

.concerned or did not see the importance of having the Legislators on a study like
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. this. This would be a study that would affect all of State Government and your
bill requires that the executive branch do the study. The other bill HB 1403 called
for a Legislative Council study. | could envision that the Legislative Council
would appoint a committee of Legislator's working directly with OMB that your bill
says and have the same type of study with one difference. We would have the
Legislator’'s involved during the interim to ask the questions that the Legislator’s
might want to know about as well as what OMB and the (can’t understand,
coughing) so | am puzzled that you took the tact of no Legislator’s involved. Do
you object to the Legislator’'s involvement?

Sen. Krauter: No, definitely not but | just have learned that to get the good data
and the good information up front we need this information brought to the
Legistative Council. If that other bill is part of the mechanism to (coughing, can’t
understand speaker) and receives its information and continues to go there, that
is perfect.

Rep. Dahl: What you are saying is that the Legislature will be involved. It just is
in a different order than what Rep. Kasper is suggesting and we are not shut out
of this process.

Sen. Krauter: Rep. Dahl you are correct. By passing this, this basically gets
Facilities Management going when the bill is signed and it goes into effect. It

. starts this process to get the data put together, so they look at it. When you hear



Page 13

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Senate Bill 2425

Hearing Date: 03/13/2009

. testimony from them now you will understand something that | really didn’t take a
look at. When we look at fiscally building a building we want to have some
returns on our investment versus just building a building. There are some things
that go into that when they look at leasing, it is a problem, and | think it is good
and it should be started right away.

Rep. Karls: When you build buildings on a space like this where do you park the
cars?

Sen. Krauter: There is the area right above # 9, | think it is parking ramp. In the
Master Plan there is a plan to handle the number of employees that are working
and it is all part of the plan. The parking facilities are all planned in there. | think
Mr. Boyle can really answer that question.

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: What would you envision building? | see
below that in Burleigh County, which | am assuming is almost all in Bismarck,
about 400,000 sq. ft of space here. Would you envision building 400,000 sq. ft.
on campus or a smaller portion or what kind of an idea do you have? If we would
build something that large what would all these people do that we are renting
from right now?

Sen. Krauter: | don't envision anything in the standpoint of the confines of
certain square footage. That is what needs to be done. We need to make sure

.that we-get information that gives us a return on our dollar and we are getting the
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. best values for our footage. If | were to put a bill in and say we need to build a
building that has 350,000 square feet , well, what is my reason for backing that
up other than pulling a number out of the air. We have to have good information
and that is one of the bills in front of us. So | don’t envision a certain square
footage. | envision that we try to plan it appropriately. Let's use all the work we
have done in the Capital Grounds Planning Commission, let's use all the work
that has been done in Facilities Management as far as the negotiations that have
been done on leases (coughing, can’'t understand speaker) as far as what
happens to those facilities here. If this study moves forward then all of a sudden
they have the ability to negotiate better on the leases in Bismarck it is a win for
State Government for taxpayers. Maybe those negotiation leases will go down. |
think that there are so many opportunities that give Facilities Management and
State Agencies by getting this work going that it is a win all the way around.
Chairman Grande: What was the cost of the storage unit we just built over on
the Capital Grounds?

Sen. Krauter: | don’t know.

Chairman Grande: You are on appropriations, you know. The one Kitty corner
for the historical society, the storage unit, what did we pay for that?

Sen. Krauter: The archives unit, that was two sessions ago. | think that was in

.the double digits, 11 or 16 million or so.
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Chairman Grande: What is their budget again now for another building piece
over there? What are they asking for? 52 million for another piece on there.
That is kind of an expense space and maybe we could utilize that building and
build a really nice historical building instead of piece-mealing it and build a really
nice one for a lot less and utilize that nice space we have right there and fill that
up. | bet we could get a lot of office space right there. Just throwing out an idea
and do you think that could be a part of the study.

Sen. Krauter: Your comments are just the reason why we need to do this
because Facilities Management needs to get as much good information as they
can about this.

Rep. Dahl: | am just trying to think of ways that we can come to a consensus
here and would you object if OMB looked at all the data and brought it together
and then maybe just added some language about consulting with the planning
commission which | think involves some Legislators and then forwards those
recommendations to the Legislative Council.

Sen. Krauter: To add language to include the Capital Grounds Planning
Commission'? Yes, that is very appropriate.

Chairman Grande: Any other questions? Anyone else wishing to speak in favor

of 24257
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. Tom Trenbeth, Chief Deputy Attorney General, State of ND: | just want to
rise in support of the concept of this bill and give some an anecdotal evidence
with respect to the spreading out of our agency. We have 180 employees give or
take in 13 divisions and they are housed variously in this building and around the
city. We have a building up North on State Street just South of the large Walmart
that houses BCl and CPAC and our IT and the Fire Marshall and we have all of
our litigators, or our place we call Dixie because it is South of here, on 9", there
are two divisions down there. Then in this building of course we have the main
floor that you are all familiar with and actually the only location that | was familiar

. with when | was sitting in one of these chairs. We have the main floor and we
also have the entire 17" floor and we have a portion of the floor that we are on
here. Electronics are a wonderful thing and we can speak to anybody at any
time that we want to speak to but all of you of course that use electronics also
understand the value of eye ball to eye ball contact and that gets to be lacking. |
also can identify with the stories that Senator Heckaman told because we
oftentimes have members of the public that will come into the main sanctuary in
our office wanting to see a particular person or asking a particular question and
as often as not it is for Consumer Protection, which is four miles from here. Then
you have to tell them that yes although they fought the hordes out here to find a

. parking space, now they need to go back to their car and go on up North on
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. State Street. We have an opportunity that we had last session and it has arisen
this session to purchase that building. | think it is far preferable if this State had a
plan to consolidate its Government. Rep. Boehning makes an excellent how
many people do we have, where are they, who knows? Again having chaired
one of your chairs on the Senate side, not having been a member of
appropriations whose job it is to alligate money for these many rental spaces, |
had no idea how many locations State Employees are located in. So i stand
here in support of the concept of this bill and | think it needs to be looked at
closely and | think it would be wise Government to try to consolidate and | think

. long-term we could use the scale resulting from that and | encourage your
serious consideration.

Chairman Grande: Any questions?

Rep. Winrich: Having served in the Legislature and now the Attorney General’s
Office, what are your thoughts about the importance of involving Legislator's in
the OMB study as opposed to simply having a report made to Legislative
Council.

Tom Trenbeth: | can't conceive a time when Legislative involvement need not
be recommended. At any endeavor involving State Government. There are
people that are hired and paid for by you folks for their expertise in this area and

.of course some deference ought to be given to their opinions. But you are the
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. ones that eventually are going to have to make the decisions so there should be
some involvement in it.

Chairman Grande: Any other questions? Any other testimony in favor?

Sally Holewa, State Court Administrator, Supreme Court of ND: On behalf of
the Judiciary | would like to support passage of this bill and one of the reasons is
because we did ask for a study of the Judicial Branch space. The reason we
have asked for that is because we are out of space. For the first time we have
had to move some of our people off into rental spaces. | realize that lots of State
Agencies have to do that but it really is quite a drastic change for the Judicial
Branch to have to do that. It was a very difficult gut-wrenching decision to decide
which part of our Judicial Branch we should separate off and how we were going
to organize ourselves to continue working. Because we really don’t have
separate divisions but we have different duties but we are all working on the
same projects all the time. So it has been a difficult adjustment but it is one that
we did make. Going into this | have done quite a bit of research | honestly was
not here back in 1976 when the last study was done in the Judicial Branch. But |
did go in and do the research and at that time Chief Justice Erikstad had a refrain
that he was using and it was “Where is the home of the Judiciary?” because
people knew where the Legislative tower was and they knew where the

.Governor’s mansion was but nobody could find the Judiciary. So | think now that



Page 19

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Senate Bill 2425

Hearing Date: 03/13/2009

. they can find us in the Judicial Wing but the Judicial Wing does not belong to the
Judiciary in fact we occupy a very small space in there. In 1976 when the study
was done it showed that the Judiciary needed 63,000 square feet but what we
occupy in the Judicial Wing is 22,000 square feet and that includes all of our
storage space and all of the public area that we have including the court room.
We have grown as Rep. Boehning mentioned, we certainly have. At the time in
1976 | think that the number was 16 employees for the Supreme Court besides
the Justices. We are now up to 53 for the Supreme Court and a great majority of
that becomes because of the changes in the court system itself. Back in 1976
we did not really have a Judicial Branch. What we had was a series of courts,
we had the municipal, we had two levels of county, we had district court, and we
had Supreme Court. At that time the role of the Supreme Court was to simply
take appealed cases. Times have changed and we do have a unified Judicial
Branch now and not only does the court still take the cases on appeal but we
also oversee those other courts and we manage those courts. Those are all
different functions. Part of that now is that we check cases to see how soon they
are getting done and to see if the judges are making it to the disposition
standards that we have set. We do Judicial education, we make sure that all of
the Judges get the education that they need in order to make good decisions and

.that is a function of the Supreme Court and the State Court Administrator’s office.
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Along with that we provide education for all of the court employees which now
number close to 400 Statewide. We take care of all of the budget and financial
not only for the Supreme Court but all of the District Courts and of course we
take care of all of the technology. So there are a lot of extra functions that we
have added to the Supreme Court that we have needed to hire people. | will say
that having worked for three State Governments now that ND is the meanest
Government | have ever seen. When | talk to my colleagues and | tell them that
we have nine people in IT they almost fall over. The other smallest one is
Delaware which has something like 34. When they ask me about Judicial
Education | say well | have one person, other people have whole departments.
They ask us why ND hasn’t moved on things like providing forms for self-
representative litigants. | tell them | have two staff that would have to take care
of the whole State, | can't assign them to go off and do other projects, as
worthwhile as they are, over things that we need. But | am not here to argue
about personnel but to ask for more help someday. Going back to the subject,
these changes have occurred. A lot of it was not driven by the Supreme Court,
the take-over of the counties was actually driven by the counties themselves, at
their request and the education course happened primarily through both

Constitutional Amendment and Legislative changes. We believe those were



Page 21

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Senate Bill 2425

Hearing Date: 03/13/2009

. good changes but they did cause changes to what we can do and what we are
supposed to do. With that I will stop and answer any questions you may have.
Rep. Karls: Why is that you only occupy 22,000 square feet of that 63,000 you
were supposed to get?

Sally Holewa: Again | have to go back to the record and it was decided that
actually what started out as a decision to build a Supreme Court was then
changed to building a Judicial Wing was also decided that there were other
agencies that had more pressing needs and they were given most of the space in
the Judicial Wing. At that time that it was passed they specifically built it for a 20
year solution for the Supreme Court and now the 20 years has come and gone,
and that is where we are at. There just has not been more space for us to move
into.

Rep. Karls: | just wanted to comment that | had reason to be in the Supreme
Court one day visiting Justice VanderWall and he took me on a tour and | was
amazed at how tiny it is. They are very cramped and in little cubicles and at the
time you were taking on another roll, something the counties did and now the
State is going to do it, child support role.

Sally Holewa: It is crowded. Two years ago | broke my ankle and | had to learn
a new way to get to my office because it wasn't wide enough to go through with

. my crutches. | thought to myself it is bad enough that | am on crutches and
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. feeling sorry for myself but now 1 have to go the long way and it really hurts. We
do continually take on new roles and | am quite aggressive about trying to keep
the court current with what other places are able to do. | am not quite sure what
you are referring to but we do continue to take on new things. We have taken on
family mediation, we have taken on guardian-at-lidem work, we have taken on
family courts, lots of things because we want ND citizens to have what other
citizens have.

Chairman Grande: Anyone else wishing to speak in favor?

Jeff Weispfenning, representing Ag Commissioner Roger Johnson,
Department of Agriculture: 1 am providing written testimony and also some
photos of our space up on sixth floor and the 14" floor here in the Capital and
also some numbers that we have developed as part of our budget requests this
biennium. (See Attachments # 4, # 5 and # 6). | would be happy to answer any
questions?

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: At the bottom of your hand out here with the
total numbers on dollar figures, OMB recommends 300 square feet per employee
at a rate of $14 per square foot. That is the number they said that you need and
should pay $14 per square foot?

Jeff Weispfenning: That is OMB’s recommendation and | have not gone

. shopping personally in terms of checking out a space, | don’'t know what the
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market value is. But that is what John Boyle from Facility Management
suggested we use as we develop a budget number.

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: What | was iooking at on another
spreadsheet here is the average cost of a per square footage is $9.82 Statewide
and | think it is $9.50 here in Bismarck, so | just wanted wondered why that
number is $5 higher than what the average is on here but John Boyle can maybe
answer that.

Chairman Grande: Anyone else wishing to speak in favor of? Opposition to?
Mr. Boyle will you come to the front.

Brenda Weisz, Chief Financial Officer, Department of Human Services,
State of ND: To answer Rep. Karls question about the child enforcement
question, it was actually our agency that took over the child support enforcement
operations of the State. (See Testimony. Attachment# 7.) | would stand for any
questions?

Rep. Kasper: You are saying that your needs are 73,000 additional square feet
from what you currently have.

Brenda Weisz: No. It is the 73,000 which the study is currentiy taking a look at.
If you would look at the Department of Human Services there would be 23,000

square feet of office space.
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. Rep. Kasper: If that is the case, you say you currently use 84,000 square feet in
the Judicial Wing, and 40,000 square feet in the West Central Human Service
Center. Thatis a 120,000 square feet.

Brenda Weisz: We use 30,000 in the Judicial Wing and that 84,000 is our
space, all leases, outside of the Capital. Of that 84,000, 40,700 is devoted to our
Mental Health Clinic. The remaining 13,000 approximately of that space in
Prairie Hills Plaza is dedicated to office space. So from the 84,000 you will have
to subtract the 40,700 that is our clinic and then add back the 30,000 for the
Judicial Wing and then you will get 73,000 square feet of office space we occupy.

. Chairman Grande: Any further questions from the committee?

John Boyle, Director of Facility Management, within the Office of
Management and Budget: | did not prepare any testimony because | knew
there was going to be a lot of testimony but | did speak with Chairman Grande
yesterday and said that | would make myself available for any questions that you
may have. OMB is in favor of either bill 1403 or 2425. We are willing to put the
study together or we are willing to work with Legislators. There are Legislators
on the Capital Grounds Pianning Commission that we do work with on a regular
basis. Also in our bill which was HB 1015 which you passed, Section 18,the last
Section also calls for a Legislative Council study at the Capital Grounds so right

. now it is really in three different locations and again we are willing to do anything
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. that all of you see fit. | can answer a lot of the questions that have been asked
so if you want to ask the same ones | could answer them.
Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: Can we add any space on top of the
Legislative Wing or Judicial Wing? On top of the footings and foundations
available?
John Boyle: That | don't know. We could get a structural engineer and we can
do anything we want we have plenty of grounds. We could expand the Judicial
Wing, North, West, and East. We could move parking lots around if we wanted
to. We could expand the Legislative Wing any direction we want too. One of the

. people that work's for me is a State Facility Planner and he and | sometimes get
together and he will sketch out certain options for the Legislative Wing. There
are not enough committee hearing rooms so we have a project that we'd like to
do this biennium and it is an improvement project which would have gone
through two Legislative meeting rooms and space is kind of tight as it is. You are
a very large committee in this room and you could probably use a larger room.
So we did a plan and it was a quick sketch, what it would cost, underground
parking, and go out West, add like six more rooms, and maybe some offices for
the Legislators and it was 12 miillion doliars. But we don’t show that to anybody
that is just stuff we work on. One thing the Master Plan did in 2000 was it

. projected growth in State government thereby projecting how much square
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. footage we would need to add. As it was pointed out in the Master Plan there is
one on the Legislative mold that calls for a new building, a 150,000 square feet of
which about 120,000 would be net reasonable square feet, for us to do that some
of the House Representatives asked us to update the cost of this to do that
building and the parking garage and it was 43 million dollars. As Senator Krauter
had stated, | did a presentation when this was on the Senate side saying if we
were to even achieve a five percent rate of return on that 43 million doilars, say
the Land Department or someone else who has excess funds and took that
money and invested it in CD’s and put it in a building and then we would charge

. rent to those agencies and go back to the Land Department, we would have to
charge $24.25 on the grounds to get that rate of return because it costs a lot of
money to build on the grounds. It costs a lot of money to build in Bismarck. We
have had three things change since | have been here over the last seven years.
The commercial land prices have gone way up. The interest rates have come
down substantially, but when we were talking about this two years ago they were
a little higher. Then of course construction costs have gone up. Chairman
Grande brought up the archive addition and that was 30,000 square feet of
basically unfinished space that was just a slab and walls and not including any of
their shelving it was 6 million dollars, 200 dollars a square foot. If you build

.outside even up Hwy 83 or so, it is probably going to be around $19 to $22 a
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. square foot. Right now it would be $24, so we are getting pretty close. All these
agencies make very good points, they all need space, they question is should it
be on the grounds or should it be out of the grounds, and right now they are
getting leases cheaper because the banks are not as vibrant as they were two
years ago. So they are a little more aggressive in giving us deals. We did just
work with the Supreme Court and we did a deal at about $11 a square foot. We
do this all time and then | make a recommendation and ask the Director of OMB
should we build a new building on the grounds. The spread is still too far, it just
makes a lot mbre sense for agencies to spend $11 to $16 off the grounds than it

. does for them to be here. Another option is the Bank of ND, they built a new
building, but their old building they sold. That would have been 20,000 square
feet, we probably would have still had to take down the tower but there was still
20,000 square feet of annex space we could have utilized. The real problem is
there is just not one centralized area that looks at all these assets and all these
leases and | know in our bill, HB 1015, Rep. Berg did put in an addendum to our
bill that said that we would kind of centralize this and that OMB would contact all
the agencies see what their needs are and negotiate the leases for them.
Because right now agencies do contact us but they don’t have to contact us. But
most of them do. So we have a really good idea of what is going on in the

. market. It is just that right now the spread is too much. Housing and Finance



Page 28

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Senate Bill 2425

Hearing Date: 03/13/2009

. they were going to move, they were going to from 8,000 square feet to 14,000
square feet, from $13 a square foot to the new lease of $22 a square foot. As
soon as | heard that, they hadn’t contacted us, but we got them a 14,000 square
feet at $15 a square foot building now, we saved them $7 a square foot. But at
$22 now you are getting a little closer to $24 and maybe we should build.

Rep. Kasper: What is the makeup of the Capital Grounds Planning
Commission?

John Boyle: It is chaired by the Lt. Governor, then there are two
Representatives from the House and two Senators from the Senate and the there

. is four others, one represents the historical society, one is a licensed architect,
and then there are two at-larges who could be anybody and the Governor
appoints those four.

Rep. Kasper: So that is part of the Executive Branch?

John Boyle: Yes itis, but it has Legislative members on it.

Rep. Kasper: My concern about this and | expressed it earlier to Sen. Krauter,
on 2425 it is an Executive Branch study, the Executive Branch would have their
perspective. Obviously you have four Legislator's but they are going to have
very minimal input and the four Legislator’s on that planning grounds committee,
may or may not know anything about building or planning. | am not saying they

. are good or bad people, | am just saying they may not have that strength. A lot
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of the Legislators may not. However, when we are looking at something that is a
major undertaking, which | see this as being, | have very great concern that the
Legislator's and the Legislative Branch of Government is not involved at the
beginning, not saying that it should not be a co-effort, but | believe that we need
Legislative oversight and involvement on any study like this so that we have dual
looks at this perspective. We might even want to include the Judicial Branch
members in that same interim study. | am very concerned about only an
Executive Branch study. Do you see the potential for not getting the type of input
in questions from just an Executive Branch compared to a joint study?

John Boyle: When you had mentioned about it being a big undertaking, the
Capital Master Plan right now costs about $126 million worth of spending which
was at $2000. Yet | would think the more buy in, | would like to see the Judicial
Branch involved, | would like to see the Legislative Branch involved, because it is
such a huge expense and everybody should have some input on it, but as | said
we are more than happy to go with 1403. We and OMB are willing to work
anyway you all see fit for us to do this. We will supply information, we can run
the whole thing and give you information, or we can have everybody involved
right up front. We are more than happy to do anything you all would like.

Chairman Grande: Any other questions?
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. Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: Do you know the total square footage that
we have here on campus?
John Boyle: Right now we have approximately 800,000 square feet of gross
square feet. We only have about 375,000 of net square feet leasable. Like this
room right here we would not conclude as office space. So when you look at that
map or the handout, the leasing handout that says how much square footage do
we have just in Bismarck-Mandan it is almost equivalent to what we have here.
Of that there are two agencies, Human Services and Health, who have like
110,000 square feet, almost a third of it. In some of the leases that are in there

. are up at the Workforce Safety Building that is called Century Center, so that is
120,000 square feet. So when you look at those two leases in Century Center,
that is 230,000 of the 300,000 plus thousand that we lease here in town.
Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: Just looking at where the Heritage Center is
the Heritage Center expansion, is that the new expansion or was that the
expansion of the storage? is that the new part of the Heritage Center too?
John Boyle: Yes, on the Master Plan it did call for both expansions. There was
a Phase | and a Phase Il. The archive expansion was Phase | which was the
30,000 square feet. The one that they are asking for now the Governor has put
in the budget 18 million in general funds and 12 million of special funds which |

.believe you passed and it is in the Senate now. But they would like to do 51.7
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. million dollars worth of work and they took the Master Plan and kind of wanted to
design it based on what the Master Plan called for and that is where they go out
to the East and the North a little bit with the existing center.

Rep. Nathe: When the State enters into a lease, how long is the length of the
lease? The time frame of it?

John Boyle: There is a statute or law that says we cannot obligate beyond two
years. So the leases are for two years and what we have done to negotiate a
little bit better on our behalf we have gone because there is a clause in the lease
that says you do not get appropriated the money for this lease then we have to

. renegotiate or just move or cut the space back. So what we have been doing
now is we do an initial two year term and we multiple two year options and we
get the rent laid out so that agencies what to ask for in their budgets because
they put their budgets together before they negotiate the next two years and this
has helped the agencies kind of lock down the Landlords as to what they are
going to charge in rent so that helps us quite a bit. Because in a two year lease
you know if you have a 30,000 square foot agency and you move in, it’s not like
you are going to move out in two years even if you raise the rent a dollar or two

dollars a square foot. So we have gone in now and kind of laid out what the rent

Is going to be.
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House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Senate Bill 2425

Hearing Date: 03/13/2009

Rep. Kasper: Looking at the title of the bill, | even have more concern than | did
in my previous discussion with you, where it states, “requiring the Director of
OMB to develop a report for the construction of all facilities occupied by State
Agencies on the Capital Grounds.” That is much more than a study and there
again it would be under this bill an Executive Branch input only and so again |
just want to express that has deep concern for me when we are looking at
something this big without a Legislative and Judicial input.

Chairman Grande: Anyone else wishing to speak on this bill. Favor? Against?

Neutral? Close the hearing on SB 2425.



2009 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Bill/Resolution No. Committee Work One SB 2425
House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
[] Check here for Conference Committee

Hearing Date: 03/19/2009

Recorder Job Number:V112hﬂ ._/\n k//]ﬂ Q/ b %_

Committee Clerk SignaturH V(/UT[ A // V{/ ! W

Minutes:

COMMITTEE WORK ONE:
Chairman Grande: We will discuss SB 2425. This is the bill relating to a study
of the square footage of the State Agencies.

. Rep. Kasper: As you recall we have also dealt with this in HB 1403 which was
my Governor's mansion bill which we turned into a study by the Legislative
Council of the Capital Grounds Master Plan and as you will recall during
testimony last week on this bill | was concerned that this was an Executive
Branch study and not a Legislative Council study. | have talked with Chief
Justice VanderWall and | have talked with John Boyle and he has talked to
Human Services and they are going to come tomorrow because 1403 is being
heard in the Senate tomorrow. They are going to come and testify in favor of that
bill as well as this bill. They really don't care which bill passes they just want to
have the study. From the perspective of us as Legislator's | think that the study

should be headed by the Legislator's and the Legislative Council not the
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House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Committee Work One SB 2425
Hearing Date: 03/19/2009

. Executive Branch of Government. That is my concern and not at all with the bill
other than it should be a Legislative Council in my opinion. | move for a Do Not
Pass motion.

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: 2™.

Chairman Grande: We have a Do Not Pass motion by Rep. Kasper and a 2nd
by Rep. Boehning. Discussion?

Rep. Conklin: If we pass both bills would it go into a Conference Committee
then?

Chairman Grande: No, Conference Committee’s would not combine bills. We
only take up one bill at a time and Conference Committee can only be called if an
amendment is made in one of the two chambers and an agreement is not
reached by the Chair of the opposite committee. Since there are no
amendments to this and unless the Senate amends Rep. Kasper's bill then that
one goes straight away too. If they both passed there would be actually two
separate studies because they are coming from two separate things.

Rep. Winrich: 1 am trying to recall the wording of the previous bill but it was
primarily a study of the Capital campus, not so much related to the space needs
of individual agencies. Where this emphasizes space and cost on a kind of
agency basis and so there are certainly some overlap but | don't think they are

.identical or really address the same purposes.
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House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Committee Work One SB 2425
Hearing Date: 03/19/2009

. Rep. Schneider: For what is worth too, this isn’'t a study it is a report backed by
Legislative Council. It seems to me that | recall from the testimony that this has
been studied quite a bit in the past and that the facilities mansion was sat on the
Capital Grounds Committee and this would simply just be kind of combination of
what they have done in the past. I'd like to see what we have passed out
previously with Rep. Kasper's bill and it may overlap in some areas but | think it
is worthy and I'd also note that | don't think there was any opposition to have
Facilities Management to have to redo it.

Rep. Kasper: | will read what 1403 says on the first line. “During the 2009 -
2010 interim the Legislative Council shall study the utilization of all facilities on
the State Capital Grounds including an evaluation of facility needs by State
Agencies and a review of the Capital Complex Master Plan. The study must
include an evaluation of the short-term and long-term viability of facilities located
on the Capital Grounds including the Governor’s residence.” “The Legislative
Council shall report its findings and recommendations together with any
Legislation required from the recommendations.” So it does incorporate the
needs of the agencies. It does not go into the detail of 2425 as far as square
footage but the intent is the same.

Rep. Wolf: After Rep. Kasper read that, to me this bill looks like a good addition

.to what they are going to be studying because this requires this report to be filed
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House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Committee Work One SB 2425
Hearing Date: 03/19/2009

. with Legislative Council by October 1 and this is a tackling a different with the off-
site locations and square footage needs and things that would be a very
complimentary bill to your bill.

Chairman Grande: My concern as | look at it is that it goes to Legislative
Council but it doesn’t go to a study, uniess they can assign it at that point and
send it somewhere but those reports are actually available right now and that
committee would request that those reports be added is what | am thinking. That
way it would stay under the preview of a Legislative group that studies it the
whole interim. This | think is going to be great information. | have seen this
information before actually when we have had some discussion on Capital
Grounds. | know it has been in discussion for a long time and it is a constant
issue especially when you come up on the re-leasing and whether or not we
should expand here or change lease there, move everybody on, that discussion
has come up on occasion and so | think this information will come in handy when
it comes to that study. But that study is what is going to request this information
we don’t necessarily need to do it here when it will be there through the whole
interim study.

Rep. Amerman: If we kill this, Rep. Kasper, is your bili going to be studied or a
chance that it won't be studied or how does yours work? |s there a chance

.neither one of these could be passed?
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House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Committee Work One SB 2425
Hearing Date: 03/19/2009

. Rep. Kasper: Yes, there is a chance. You never know until each body acts.
When | talked to John Boyle about either study he said the information that he
would be gathering regardless of which bill passes would be the same. The
second thing is that when | talked to Rep. Carlson about the change in 1403 he
said to his knowledge the Legisiature has never studied the Capital Grounds
Master Plan, it has always been the Executive Branch and the Committee on
Capital Grounds management. The last plan was put together in 2000 but
nothing has been implemented. | think possibly a good reason for that is
because the Legislature has not embraced it and taken part of it. So my goal
and concern is the Legislature takes ownership of the situation and that it is our
responsibility anyway.

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: In looking at the bill in front of us | wonder if
OMB could just study this anyway. Why do we have to put it in the law that they
should do a study, they should be able to do the study because they do a lot of
other things from listening to Mr. Boyle. That they make drawings and have
discussions on this so | am thinking that it would be within their parameters to do
a study if they so wish to do one now and not have to put it in a State Law.
Chairman Grande: Any other discussion? We have the bill in front of us with a

Do Not Pass.
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House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Committee Work One SB 2425
Hearing Date: 03/19/2009

. Rep. Nathe: My concern is if we kill this and say Rep. Kasper bill gets killed then
nothing happens.
Chairman Grande: Legislative Council has the ability to set a study if they wish.
Legislative Council gets to do whatever they want with the studies.
Rep. Schneider: Again this is just a report and the whole intent | think of the bill
is to save money. To see where we can streamline the process in State
Government and see where we are duplicating services. It is not a study, it
simply is just a report back to Council and | think it is good information to have
and we all support Rep. Kasper's resolution, | think that is a good study as well.
This to me seems complimentary.
Chairman Grande: Clerk will call the roll on a Do Not Pass on 2425.
Clerk Erhardt: Roll Call: Yes: 6. No: 6. Absent: 1.
Chairman Grande: Motion fails.
Rep. Schneider: Motion for a Do Pass.
Rep. Wolf: 2™,
Chairman Grande: We have a Do Pass motion by Rep. Schneider and a 2™ by
Rep. Wolf. Clerk will call the roll. Do we have any further discussion?
Rep. Froseth: | guess the way | look at it is this probably wouldn’t do any harm.
| don’'t necessarily disagree with the State renting some property off the Capital

.Grounds Campus either. All the properties they rent, although it is quite a few
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House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution No. Committee Work One SB 2425
Hearing Date: 03/19/2009

and it is about 7 miilion dollars worth of rent but all those they rent who pays the
property taxes to the City of Bismarck and the County where any State owned
property so there is a benefit to the community and to the State as a whole
because somebody is making some profit off that rental property. The one thing
about this is that it does not say what it would cost to furnish all that space. That
would be a tremendous cost in furnishing those facilities too with furniture and
desks and chairs and computers and everything else that is needed. More than
likely any agency that moved to a new facility is not going to move their old
furniture over there and so it probably is going to be a tremendous cost that the
State is never going to be able afford to undertake.

Rep. Amerman: For OMB to do this, they basically have everything in place to
come up with this report and give their report to the council whereas, if you have
the study and you do it in the interim you have the cost of basically to the tax
payers and getting all the Legislator's there and bringing people in and over a
two year interim. Where it could be done just with this and that would be a cost-
saver right there.

Chairman Grande: Any other discussion? Clerk will call the roll on a Do Pass
motion.

Clerk Erhardt: Second Roll Call: Yes: 7. No: 5. Absent: 1. Carrier: Rep. Nathe.
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THE MASTER PLAN (community and neighborhood context)

COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBORHOOQD CONTEXT

Enhancing and preserving view corridors, gateways, and significant approaches to
the Capitol Grounds will insure successful relationships within the community.
Physical linkages will improve the connectivity to neighboring residential areas,
education facilities, and recreational and natural resources, while emphasizing the
cultural and historic significance of the Capitol Grounds. The following
recommendations will enhance the overall image of the Capitol and heighten the
welcoming experience for visitors and users.

Recommendations:

* Advocate the desired Vision for the Capitol Grounds Master Plan by
participating in local planning efforts.

* Improve identification and directional signage along Interstate 94. Develop and
enhance the State Street interchange with Interstate 34 as the primary vehicular
access from the north.

* Improve the sense of arrival for visitor traffic arriving from the south by
redirecting traffic from 9th Street to 6th Street via E Avenue C,

e Coordinate with DOT regarding State Street and Boulevard Avenue
reconstruction projects to improve vehicular access and circulation.

» Coordinate with DOT regarding implementation of a multipurpose trail along the
east side of State Street and the north side of Boulevard Avenue.

* Collaborate with the City of Bismarck to develop streetscape standards for 9th
and 6th Streets to enhance visual access and highlight the Arrivai experience.

+  Collaborate with the City of Bismarck to extend trail/sidewalk connections to the
Missouri River corridor and to educational and recreational attractions.

* Implement perimeter landscape treatment to frame on-site and off-site views
and enhance neighborhood relationships.

* Improve Myron Atkinson Memorial Park to enhance the State Street entrance,
improve use of the park, and create a cohesive visual landscape character
aleng both sides of State Street.

ARCHITECTURE AND BUILDING LOCATIONS

After the earlier State Capitol building was destroyed by fire in 1930, the current
State Capitol features an aggressive asymmetry while still maintaining symmetrical
elements such as the central main entrance aligned with the centerline of the Capitot
Mall. The Tower and the Legislative chambers form a careful balance of diverse
elements about the central axis. This approach influenced a change in thinking
when further new buildings were located. These were gathered asymmetrically and
compactly around the eastern base of the Tower, stretching southward toward the
historic Liberty Memorial Building.

This Master Plan recommends a reconfirmation of both symmetry and asymmetry as
a rich mixture for new buildings and landscape features. The location of the first
new building to accommodate future growth is recommended to acknowledge the
historic symmetry intended in the 1920 Morell & Nichols Plan by placing a building
symmetrically opposite the historic Liberty Memorial Building. However, the new
building area requirements are considerably larger than the size of the Liberty
Building. As a result, the new building is modeled with an east wing projecting
forward from a larger building, with that east projection reflecting the length and
height of the Liberty Memorial Building.

North Dakota State Capital Master Plan

1-15



THE MASTER PLAN (architecture and building locations)

Later, growth can be accommodated by two buildings symmetricaily arranged along
the east portion of the Capitol Grounds. These buildings, displacing some existing
surface parking, would be served by a new mufti-floor parking ramp that could
include a climate-controlled pathway connecting to the existing east tunnel between
the Judicial Building and the DOT Building.

A new Central Maintenance and Motor Poot Facility is proposed for the northwest
portion of the site, replacing the maintenance and motor pool area currently located
immediately north of the Capitol Tower, This less obtrusive location will offer the
opportunity to consider the feasibility of a central heating and cooling plant in that
location as well. Moving the facilities will serve to beautify the north entry area to the
Grounds, aided by landscape screening of the service facility.

Recommendations:

* New buildings should be designed to harmonize in scale and major materials
with the existing buildings.

s Window and door openings have a distinct influence on architectural character
and should be considered in new designs for their compatibility with existing
character.

* The principles of both symmetry and “balanced” asymmetry should be
considered in the location and design of new buildings.

*  Structured parking and parking decks should be considered in striving to locate

~ parking in reasonable proximity to the locations of staff and visitors.

* The location and size of new buildings must respect the dignity and
comparative privacy of the Governor's Residence, maintaining a respectful
distance.

= Compactness in location of buildings is desirable 1o minimize waiking distances
between buildings and parking during the winter manths.

+  Elimination of the existing drive-through beneath the main south entry steps is
important to reduce the threat of terrorist acts. Development of a new west
drop-off area will replace this important feature. The old drop-off area can be
altered to pedestrian entrance and staff lounge or other functions.

Construction of new buildings can vary in lime with the evolution of space needs
without affecting the overall continuous harmony of the Capitol Grounds. However,
new parking demands must be satisfied in concert with new building expansion,

SPACE UTILIZATION
The final recommended planning scenario includes the following:

¢ Rightsizing of existing offices located on the Complex (230 S.F. per occupant),
+ Consolidation of departments by relocation of leased offices to the Complex,
including:
¢ Human Services
« Information Technology
¢ Industrial Commission
s Insurance (South Office)
¢« OMB - Risk Management
* Expansion of Historical Society.
¢+ New State Library.
*  Construction of 156,000 Gross $.F. buitding to accommodate rightsizing and
consolidation of departments.
*  Construction of two additional 80,000 Gross S.F. buildings to accommodate
future growth.

North Dakota Stale Capitol Master Plan
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THE MASTER PLAN (vehicular circulation and parking)

VEHICULAR CIRCULATION AND PARKING

Second only to buildings, roadways and parking strongly define and organize the
environment of a campus setting, bath visually and functionally. Entrances and drives
should be located and aligned to provide the greatest convenience for staff and
visitors. Parking areas should be located in the proximity of intended destinations to
minimize walking distances, vehicular and pedestrian conflicts and confusion.

Recommendations:

Develop a perimeter loop road system to minimize internal vehicular traffic.
Access alf parking and building entrance points from the perimeter loop road.

s Simplify the Boulevard Avenue entrance configuration to beautify and strengthen
the main entrance to the Capitol Grounds and improve safety and wayfinding.

+ Modify the State Street entrance, in conjunction with the reconstruction of State
Street, and eliminate frontage roads. Shift the entrance location to the south to
align with the main east/west roadway and eliminate the frontage road to Divide
Avenue.

» Enhance the north entrance from Divide Avenue, after implementing the
relocation of the Maintenance and Motor Pool to the northwest comner.

¢« Develop a "Legislative Mall” along 4th Street to celebrate and formalize the
importance of the Legislative Wing and to create a more organized circulation
and parking system for the west side of the Capitol Grounds.

» Create a covered drop-off area at the west entrance of the Legislative Wing
prior to the elimination of the south drive-through.

« Eliminate the south vehicular drive-through below the main entrance steps for
security purposes. This area should remain a pedestrian entrance and may
also serve as an employee break area.

» Eliminate on-street parking, during most times, on all internal roadways except
the Capitol Mall. Continue to allow on-street parking along appropriate
roadways only during Legislative sessions as a means of absorbing the
additional peak parking demands.

s« Develop a two-level parking deck on the south side of the proposed west
Legislative Mall. This deck will service both a new building on the west side of
the Capitol Mall and the Legislative Wing. Utilize the existing topography to
minimize the visual impact of the deck. Provide a pedestrian tunnet link to the
west Legislative Wing entrance for convenience.

e Develop a multi-level parking structure on the east central area of the Capitol
Grounds to serve the Judicial Wing, DOT Building, and future building sites.

* Provide secure bicycle parking areas within parking decks or structures.

s Increase the amount of visitor parking with consideration for visitor destination
and enhance ils quality and accessibility for persons with disabilities.

» Adopt a goal to provide employee parking at the ratio of 0.95 spaces per
employee (95% of the on-site employee count).

+ Provide reserved Legislative parking at one space for each legislator and
legislative staff, This parking can be utilized by general staff during non-
legislative periods.

¢ Align parking areas to optimize- pedestrian movement and snow removal
efficiency. Establish the minimum size of interior parking lot islands as the
equivalent of four parking stalls and medians as a minimum of twelve feet wide
to provide adequate snow storage area.,

« Consider incentives for carpooling and use of alternative modes of
transportation as a part of a comprehensive Transportation Management Plar,

s Consider fee-based parking for some areas to help offset parking structure
operational costs and to encourage use of alternative modes of transportation.

» Implement signage standards to clearly identify employee and visitor parking
areas and building entrances.

» Implement lighting standards to improve safety.

North Dakota State Capitol Master Plan
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THE MASTER PLAN (pedestrian circulation and plazas)

PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION AND PLAZAS

Growing trends in healih, fitness, and environmental education provide unique
opportunities to develop a comprehensive pedestrian circulation plan for the Capitol
Grounds. Combining these opportunities with such challenges as the North Dakota
climate, a viable monument ptacement policy, and providing ADA compliance
becomes a daunting, but rewarding, task. The following recommendations will
create a highly attractive and integrated pedestrian system.

Recommendations:

Develop a meandering, multipurpose, recreational trail along State Street and
Boulevard Avenue, in conjunction with the DOT reconstruction project. The trail
should generally avoid being strictly parallel to the streets system in order to
introduce a feefing of informality and personal exploration to the edge of the
Capitel Grounds.

Deveiop a meandering trail along the Divide Avenue and 4th Street sides of the
Capitol Grounds. Create overlooks from the Divide Avenue trail which provide
interpretive opportunities and off-site views to the town center and Missouri
River Valley corridor. )

Reconfigure and expand the Arboretum Trail; thus, providing greater access to
additional areas of the Capitol Grounds.

Develop a “Capitol Plaza” arcund the base of the south main entry steps,
creating a State "Welcome Mat” for visitors and a venue for civic activity.,
Enhance all primary building entrance plazas to consistently celebrate and
identify main access points.

Develop an outdoor amphitheater for public gathering at the northwest
courtyard of the Heritage Center,

All waiks should consist of Portland cement concrete pavement. All plazas or
accent areas should be highlighted with granite pavers to match pavers
currently on the Complex. Accent color paving should be consistently
introduced to border monuments, statues, and interpretive displays.

Implement furnishings standards to unify the pedestrian system.

Implement signage standards for interpretive display, building identification,
and entrances.

Implement lighting standards to improve safety and extend the useful hours of
the trail and walk system.

end of the Capitoi Mall
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THE MASTER PLAN (infrastructure/landscape treatment)

INFRASTRUCTURE

Sanitary sewer, water, electricity, gas, fiber optics, telecommunications, and storm
water collection are critical to the day-to-day operations of the Capitol Grounds.
Capacity, longevity, maintenance, and serviceability become primary in determining
planning recommendations for these etements, These systems have been recently
evaluated by the Grounds and Maintenance Staff and appear to be in good working
condition and are reported to have adequate capacity for growth. The following
planning recommendations can assist in developing additional or modified systems
in the future.

Recommendations:

e When funding expansion buildings, reconfirm by engineering analysis, at the
outset of planning, the practicality of the new intended design loads on the
various infrastructure systems,

* Replace the existing Maintenance/Motor Pool facilities with a new Central
Maintenance and Motor Pool Facility at the northwest corner of the site,

+« Consider a central electric plant, to be located within the Central Maintenance
Facility area.

Coordinate sewer systems with the City of Bismarck and DOT.
Explore potential development of retention/detention basins that could be
integral into the design of the Historic Gardens or perimeter edge treatment.

LANDSCAPE TREATMENT

The diversity of the outdoor areas on the Capitol Grounds provides numerous
opportunities for enriched outdoor experiences. The “park-like” nature of the
grounds is highly valued by the public and staff as a relaxing and aesthetic
atmosphere. These values, combined with the rich heritage of the site, provide a
framework for establishing recommendations and strategies for the landscape
treatment of the Capitol Grounds.

Recommendations

* Eliminate all undesirable plant material and begin a commitment to develop-
ment of typical North Dakota plant environments.

« Develop suitable plant material list for selection of future installations (see
Appendix for suggested suitable plant list).
Enhance and expand the native prairie areas on the grounds.
Implement perimeter edge plantings to highlight entrance points, frame on-site
and off-site views, and define the Capitol Grounds.

¢ Implement uniform design standards and landscape design character for the
development and redevelopment of the grounds surrounding various facilities.

+ Add seasonal landscape variation throughout the campus.

« Implement a replacement program for existing elm trees lining the Capitel Mall.

* Develop historically significant plantings and interpretive displays in the Historic
Gardens.

*  Modify the Arboretum Trail landscape collection, based in part on realignment
and expansion of the Trail,

s Further define outdoor use areas by emphasizing a "woods and meadow”
theme for the grounds.

s Implement irigation design standards (see - Appendix for suggested
standards}.

North Dakola State Capitol Master Plan



THE MASTER PLAN (site features and amenities)

SITE FEATURES AND AMENITIES

The opportunities to further enhance the North Dakota State Capitol Grounds are
excellent. Major improvements in site features and amenities can optimize the use
of the property, provide organization and unity of the grounds, and create additional
recreational, cultural, and ceremonial experiences. The following recommendations
build upon existing features, while adding new amenities and value to the campus.

Creale a "Legislative Mall” on the west side of the Capitol Complex.

Develop the "Historic Gardens” southwest of the Heritage Center as a major
visitor attraction.

Develop a "Capitol Plaza” at the base of the south main steps as a major public
gathering space and an icon for the Capito! Grounds.

Develop an outdoor amphitheater for public gatherings, visitor tours,
educational sessions, and special events.

Relocate the “Judicial Grove" to the northeast side of the Judicial wing as a
more fitting relationship to its mission. Adopt plant selection and location
standards.

implement a monuments and statues location and selection plan and policy.
The following plan suggests recommended locations for primary monuments
and statues to better organize circulation systems and improve visibility for the
features. A final plan and criteria for monuments and statue content, design,
location, materials and process should be developed by the Capital Grounds
Planning Commission,

Implement building entrance design standards to uniquely identify these areas
apart from typical pedestrian areas, including paving treatment, site furnishings,
landscaping, signage, and lighting.

Character Sketch
Historic Gardens looking Nortty

North Dakota State Capito! Master Plan
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THE MASTER PLAN (signage standards)

SIGNAGE STANDARDS

The quality and consistency of exterior signage has a significant impact, not only on
the visual character, but aiso on the perceived organization of the Capitol Grounds.
Signage should provide visitors with the proper orientation to find their destination.
Consistent and appropriate materials can complement the architecturat character
and civic dignity of the Grounds. The Master Plan recommends a hierarchical
system of strategically located identification, directional, informational, and
interpretive signs. This signage will simplify wayfinding as it integrates with
circulation patterns and the diversity of users of the system.

Recommendations:

* Develop a comprehensive signage master pian, including font styles, sign
types, graphics, colors, materials, standard details and a master location plan.

*  Eliminate inappropriate and confusing signs.

* Thehierarchy of the signage system is recommended as:
o  Signature Identification Sign (optional)

Capitol Grounds Identification Signs

Directional Signs

Building !dentification Signs

Interpretive Signs

0 CoQ

The sign types and design concepts outiined below identify the primary sign
categories and their design intent. The following illustration recommends locations
for primary identification and directional signs. These prototypes and recommended
locations, are intended to be used as a guide for the development of a
comprehensive signage master plan, All signs should be rectangular, precast
concrete monuments, mounted on cast-in-place concrete bases with appropriate
foundations and footings. Signage and graphics for Signature and Capitol Grounds
Identification Signs should be cut metal forms, surface mounted with vandal-
resistant anchors to the precast monument and externally illuminated. Signage,
graphics and background for building identification, directional and informational
signage shouid be subsurface and integrat with a matte finish, fiberglass panel
mounted with vandal-resistant anchors to the precast monument. These signs may
be externally or internally lighted.

North Dakota Stlate Capitol Master Plan




SIGNAGE

oA
Avenua. ;.

G

>\ W e RS -
... Boulevard Avenue : Lot
- N7 Y £
’ Existing Buildings Site Fealures/Ammenities
g:'gﬂ':ﬁﬁe Sign (1) Legisiative Wing Capitcl Mall
Q Frgm D S? n (2) Capitol Tower Capitel Plaza
a BL:" dﬁn" a S? 4 (@) Judicial Wing Legislativa Mall
1 Direc!ic?nal Sign (4) DOT Building Amphitheater
(8) Liberty Memarial Library Myron Atkinson Park
- (6) Heritage Center Judicial Grove
(1) Governcr's Residence
Preposed Buildings
(8) Maintenance / Motar Fool
(3) Proposed Builging
G0 Heritage Center Expansion
¢1) Historic Gardens / Pavilion
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THE MASTER PLAN (signage slandards continued)

Signature Identification Sign (optional)

Although a signature identification sign would not be required to complete a
comprehensive sign system, the natural beauty and dignity of the North Dakota
Capitol Grounds provides a wonderful opportunity to incorporate such a sign at the
south format and symmetrical entry to the Capitol Mall.

Capitol Grounds Identification Signs

NORTH.[DAKOTA| $TATE JAPITOL

TLiveaty and [Unien Wewonad Jerever Qe mndflavaparabinr, o,

e

Capitol Grounds Identification signs should be located at each major vehicular point
of access to the Grounds., These signs provide a powerful first impression and
introduce a vocabulary of handsome materials consistent with other sign system
components. Signs should be oriented perpendicular to perimeter traffic on public
streets and double-sided to maximize the view potential.

Directional Signs

Visitors and service providers unfamiliar with the Capitol Grounds will be the major
beneficiaries of a well-designed directional signage system. Directional signs can
efficiently guide users to designated parking areas, visitor entrances, information,
buildings, and other services located on the Capitol Grounds. These signs shouid
harmonize with the materials and graphics of the Identification Signs while
incorporating clear, legible, and universally understood directicnal symbols,
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THE MASTER PLAN {signage standards continued)

Building Identification Signs

Building Identification Signs should be consistently located adjacent to primary
building entrances. These signs are intended to clearly identify the primary
agencies housed within each building.

Interpretive Signs

Secrion

Elevation

The North Dakota Capitol Grounds offers a diversity of educational and interpretive
opportunities, This element of the signage system should be pedestrian oriented
and provide flexibility for a variety of display options, yet maintain a theme of
materials and character consistent with other sigh system elements. This system
would be ulitized for the Arboretum Trail, Monument and Stalues, and the Historic
Gardens,
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THE MASTER PLAN (lighting standards)

LIGHTING STANDARDS

Over time, a variety of lighting styles and types has been introduced to the Capitol
Grounds. This has resulted in a high-maintenance system that lacks continuity and
effectiveness. Lighting, like signage and other landscape elements, should work
within an overall coherent system, rather than developed individually for each building
project. It is important to distinguish between nceds for pedestrian, vehicular,
building, and accent lighting as well as to balance concerms for aesthetics and safety.

Recommendations:

+ Develop lighting standards for roadway, pathway, and accent lighting.

= Select appropriate light fixtures that relate to the architectural character of the
Capitol Grounds and "fit” with signage and furnishings standards.

» Encourage high quality, energy cfficiency, and minimal maintenance in lighting
selections.

Area Lighting

Manufacturer  Kim Lighting
City of Industry, CA
626.968.5666

Style Archetype
Model AR

Area lighting should provide safe and efficient sources of light for major vehicular
circulation areas. With the exception of the Capitol Mall and Legisiative Mall, all
roadways and parking areas should utilize area lighting. Due to the height of these
poles {+/-25'), the fixture selected should minimize its visual impact,

Pedestrian Lighting

Manufacturer  Lumec Lighting
Boisbriand, Quebec {Canada)
. 514.430.7040
Style Lantern Series
L82 Luminaire

Scale and aesthetic value become especially critical when selecting standard light
poles and fixtures for pedestrian areas. All major pedestrian walks and trails should
be lit with pedestrian poles that serve to extend the daily use of these amenities and
relate to the architectural character of the campus.
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THE MASTER PLAN (lighting/site furnishings standards)

Bollard Lighting

Manufacturet Lumec Lighting
Boisbriand, Quebec (Canada)
450.430.7040

Style Traditional Bollard Series
BORS0

Low level bollard lighting can play an important role in distinguishing between
vehicular and pedestrian zones and providing secondary light levels for safety and
ambiance.

Accent Lighting

Manufacturer  Kimn Lighting
City of Industry, CA
626.968.5666

Style CFL
Compact Floodlight
Wall Forms

The Capitol Grounds offers many opportunities for accent lighting that can highlight
special features of the campus. These include the dramatic lighting of building
facades, the uplighting of trees and landscaping, and the accent lighting of
monuments and special features.

SITE FURNISHINGS STANDARDS

A comprehensive site furnishings vocabulary can act as an important unifying
element to bind the various aspects of the Capitol Grounds together. Seating, trash
containers, bicycle parking stands, and related amenities should be coordinated to
harmonize with the style and materials of the buildings and lighting and signage
systems,

Recommendations:

Benches

HEI-.'L'.'!-\A"_':E Mgu 2
Manufacturer DuMor, inc.
Mifflintown, PA Bench 92 {w/o back)

Models Bench 58 (w/back)

800.598.4018
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SENATE BILL NO. 2425 AS AMENDED

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 54-44-04 of the North Dakota Century
Code, relating to requiring the director of the office of management and budget to develop a report for
the construction of all facilities occupied by state agencies on the capitol grounds.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 54-44-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

Shall prepare and submit to the Legislative Council by October 1, 2010, a report including the
location, expenses, and square footage requirements of all facilities occupied by various entities
of each state agency. The report shall include recommendaticons for relocation of any entity to
achieve improvements in service to the public along with optimal efficiencies in usage of space

and cost. Consideration shall include recommendations of the master plan and construction of
buildings on the capitol grounds.




. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SB 2425

Page 1, line 3, replace “proposal” with “report” and replace “office buildings” with “all facilities occupied
by state agencies”

Page 1, line 7, replace “assembly” with “council” and “plan for” with “report including the location,
expenses, and square footage requirements of all facilities occupied by various entities of each state
agency.”

Page 1, after line 7, insert:

“The report shall include recommendations for relocation of any entity to achieve
improvements in service to the public along with optimal efficiencies in usage of space and cost.
Consideration shall include recommendations of the master plan and construction of buildings
on the capitol grounds.”

Page 1, remove lines 8 through 10

Renumber accordingly
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Krauter, Aaron J.

From: Smith, Jim W.

“ant: Wednesday, February 11, 2009 4:43 PM
» Krauter, Aaron J.
ubject: State of the Judiciary

Aaron, I highlighted in bofd the part of the Message relative to the need for additional Court space:

State of the Judiclary Message
January 7, 2009
Chief Justice Gerald W. VandeWalle
North Dakota Supreme Court
Introduction _
Lieutenant Governor Dalrymple, Speaker Monson, members of the Legistative Assembly,
Governor Hoeven, state executive officials, my judicial colleagues and other friends. Thank
you for allowing me to appear before this Joint Session of the Sixty-first Legislative Assembly of
our great state. This is the 9 State of the Judiciary message | have presented to you and the
25mn Assembly of the North Dakota Legislature | have had the opportunity to observe. | do not
take the privilege to appear before you lightly, and | continue to feel that sense of excitement
and anticipation that, at least for me, comes with each session.
Task Force on Raclal and Ethnic Falrness
I'am sure | will not be the first person you have heard remark on the changing demographics of
our state of North Dakota. In addition to the continuing trend of an aging rural population, and,
after years of a constant ethnic population, new econemic opportunities are bringing people of
different races and backgrounds to our state. It is our hope that they are finding North Dakota
as open and as welcoming as our own ancestors did and that they will make North Dakota a
home for themselves and their children.
A fair and impartial court system is a cornerstone of our form of government, and it is no secret
at the strength of the court relies on the respect of the people. We must be certain that our
urts are meeting the needs of all North Dakota citizens, including our first citizens, the Native
OURNAL OF THE HOUSE 2nd DAY -
ricans, as well as those new residents from other ethnic backgrounds who have come to
r state seeking a better life and the equality our form of government promises. Bias cannot
be tolerated in any governmental branch or institution, but it is particularly harmful in the courts,
to which the public looks for faimess and neutrality. It is imperative that we identify and
address any real or perceived bias within the court system. To this end, we will establish a task
force on racial and ethnic faimess whose work will begin later this year. Funding for this task
force is included in the Judicial Branch budget.
Study Resolution on Elder Issues o
North Dakota has an aging population and the issues of the elderly are becoming more urgent.
Within 30 years, more than 30% of the population of our rural counties is expected to be over
3. This, in conjunction with North Dakota's continued loss of young people, creates a situation
in which family members who could normally be expected to provide care for their aged parents
live for away. Elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation involve complex civil and criminal issues
that require a sustained and committed response by the courts and scciety. There is a need for
the state to ensure that vulnerable adults are being protected and that is why we have
submitted a study resolution on elder issues. Identifying the issues is one step. Resolving
them will require the cooperation of all three branches of government at both the state and local
level. As a state, we have a proven record of being able to work together. When there are
problems to be addressed we don't ignore them and we don't build walls between those
agencies or groups that are most impacted by the problem. Instead, our model has been to
bring our brightest and most knowledgeable folks together to build solutions that rest on
collaboration and communication. This is one area in which that model of problem-solving is
needed. [ urge you to give serious consideration to accepting this study.
| have been asked to chair a task force on elder law for the Conference of Chief Justices and
the Conference of State Court Administrators. | hope it is not because of my advancing age but
er because ! raised the issue to the Conference, and it is an issue that is emerging in many
es as the baby boomers reach retirement age. | hope to bring to the task force some of the
and soiutions we will be considering in North Dakota, and | hope to bring some of the
g of the task force to the interim study if you accept this resolution for an interim study.
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d Mediation Pllot Program

With your support in the fast legislative session, we began a mediation pilot program to address

the needs of families going through divorce and child custody issues. The family-law

practitioners in North Dakota are resourceful in helping couples resolve their differences without

“irect court intervention. The mediation program is designed to alleviate the lingering

terness that can blossom when custody and visitation issues are not able to be effectively
ssolved without court intervention. The program has been established in two judicial districts

d early evaluations are showing an exciting rate of success. Seventy-seven percent of

couples going through the program have resolved their differences and report that the process
was beneficial. We know that the program Is achieving its desired result, not just by the

number of cases that are settled, but by the comments we are receiving from participants.
Comments such as, "it brought the two of us to a place where we were at least able to talk
about the issues” and (the best thing about it was) "being able to talk face-to-face for the first
time in months.” We continue to evaluate the program to assure that the results are lasting and
not merely a lull in the process of separation of a family, but we are encouraged by our
progress and eager to expand the program to more areas of the state.

Drug Courts

A model of problem-solving courts that most of you are familiar with is drug courts. Since | last
spoke with you, we have expanded juvenile drug courts into both Minot and Witliston. We are
currently in the planning stages for an additional juvenile drug court in Devils Lake. Drug courts
are costly, but they are a proven method of resolving problems peopie are having with alcohol
and drugs. These resolutions don't represent just the closure of another case, but a permanent
and positive change in the life of the child who appears before the court. Drug courts play an
important role in helping troubled children find the path to a healthy, productive aduithood.
Adult drug courts, too, have been started or expanded in Grand Forks, Fargo, Bismarck and
Minot and have proved effective in reducing recidivism rates. This is not a court system
success alone. We rely on a strong partnership with state agencies, private providers, and
non-profit organizations to carry out the drug court mission and we all share in its success.
Funding for Education

Speaking of working together to resclve problems, | congratulate Lt. Governor Dalrymple and

- the members of the Commission on Education Improvement and the North Dakota Legislature

for working together to resolve the issue of funding for elementary and secondary education in
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arth Dakota. Although | ordinarily do not talk about matters which have been the subject of

ation in our courts, some of you will recall that this matter was in our court nearly two

des ago and reached the Supreme Court some 15 years ago. My colleagues from other

tes are impressed by the fact that the Executive and Legislative Branches in North Dakota
were able to resolve this issue without an order from the Supreme Court.

Civil Legal Services for Indigents

There is a recognized need for adequate civil legal services for indigents. These services are
provided to poor people who are involved In the legal system. These issues usually are related
to housing, health, public benafits, and child and family matters. Federal funding for civil legal
services does not keep pace as the need increases. As interest rates drop so does the income
from lawyers' trust accounts, IOLTA, which has aiso provided funding for civil legal services. In
North Dakota, part of the funds for civil legal services comes from civil filing fees. Since 1997
the civil legal services share of these funds has been capped at $400,000. | support legislation
that removes the cap or raises it to same figure that will provide indigent litigants better access
to the legal system.

Judgeships

Better access to the courts depends on more than just access to an attorney. To ensure fair,

" independent and timely resolution of cases, the courts must be adequately staffed and funded.
In prior addresses, | have shared my concemns that the reduction of judges from 53 to 42 was
too deep a cut. That number was established by legislation in 1991, and was not based on any
type of study or consideration refated to popuiation, geography or case filings. Our intemal
weighted caseload study, which we later put in place, measures judge need based on both
number and type of case. These studies are done annually, and they have always shown a
shortage of judges. | have resisted earfier suggestions that we increase the number of judges
insisting that a long-term need be demonstrated. The past five studies have shown a
continuing need for five additional judges. | am not here today to ask you for five new
judgeships, but | am here to ask for two new judgeships this biennium, one for the Southeast

ludicial District and one for the Northwest Judicial District, and authorization for one new
geship for the East Central Judicial District to be funded in the following biennium. We have
what we can do intermally to alleviate the issues created by the shortages of judges, but it
ot been enough. These three districts need the services of at least one more full-time
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judge.

Judicial Salaries

it is not comfortable for me, as a judge, to ask for larger salaries for judges, but as the
administrative head of the court system, it is my duty to do so. A sound salary administration

' "v;n is critical to attracting and retaining the best qualified people we can to provide judicial

. /vices. YWe must continue to take steps to ensure that district judgeships are sought after by

e best and brightest of the practicing bar to assure the caliber of judicial leadership the state

North Dakota needs an deserves. The Governor's budget proposes a 5% increase for state

employees, and we are also requesting salary increases of 5% in each year of the biennium for

the judges and justices. This adjustment will bring us to a level where salaries for North Dakota
judges are somewhat closer to their counterparts across the nation, and in particular, closer to

the salaries in our sister state of South Dakota.
Supreme Court Facllities

The needs of the judiciary are not conflned to staff and salaries. It Is time to reintroduce the
subject of adequate facilities for the Judiclal Branch. | expect that, with very little exception,

“most of you were not around in 1975 when the last judicial space needs analysis was done. At
that time, the entire Supreme Court operation conslisted of 5 justices and 11 support staff.
Since then, you have consolldated county and district court, and unified administration under
the Supreme Court. County employees In the office of Clerk of Court became state employees.
The function of the Supreme Court in relation to the district courts has gone from aversight of
the lower courts to administration of the courts as envisioned by the Judiclal Article of our State
Constitution. The court system is now a large organization with 53 locations, 5 Justices,

42 judges, 285 state employees, and 32 contract county employees to manage. We have
added staff and services to carry out these management dutles. Facility management has

.Wt“\glth limited ot no space available in the Ca eX, we have bee _94
forced to tempdrarlly locate part of the staff In leased premises. We are In need of addltiona
space so that we can confinue to ¢arry out our misslon of providing Justice to the citizens of
North Dakota. When we moved Into the Judicial Wing more than 25 years ago, it was billed as
a 10-15 year solution. The North Dakota courts were part of the territorial government when
North Dakota became a state 120 years ago, and the North Dakota courts will continue to be
64 JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE 2nd DAY

here for at least another 120 years. We are requesting that this legislature authorlze a space

eads analysls so that we can begin looking for a permanent solution for the needs of the

preme Court.

t for District Court Space

erty tax relief is an issue this legislature is expected to look into. With this in mind, 1 raise

¥8 subject of paying the counties rent for court space. Since the court filing fees were diverted

from the county treasury to the state general fund in 1995, this matter has been discussed

several imes over the years but has not reached resolution. Each time it comes up ! have said

that | am not opposed to paying rent, but it must be a legislative solution that is equitable for the

counties but sfill ensures that the space provided for the court is adequate in both size and

functionality. | would not advocate the court system assuming ownership of courthouses, as

some state court systems have done. But, | do advocate a role for the state in assuming a

share of the cost of building new courthouses with the judiciary having meaningful involvement

in the planning of the court facilities.

Case Management System

The court system relies heavily on tradition, but it operates like any other modern business.

That includes the use of technology to track case files, court judgments, and fine payments.

Last biennium, we were provided funds to plan for the replacement of our district court case

management system. We have spent the past 18 months studying our needs and the differant

types of case management systems that are available to the courts. We have selected a

well-established vendor with a proven track record of providing a solid, well-liked, and reliable

case management system. Of course, it comes with a price tag to match. We are confident

that this is a system that will meet our needs today and well into the future, and we are asking

for the funds to purchase this software.

For the Record

I note for the record that Judge Cynthia Rothe-Seeger, the first woman to become a district

judge in North Dakota, chose not to seek reelection. Judge Wickham Corwin, a Fargo lawyer,

was elected to the position in November 2008 and assumed office January 1, 2009.

| note with sadness the death on September 9, 2007, of Gary Holum, former District Judge in

\Minot, and the death on June 25, 2008, of surrogate Judge Jon Kerian, former District Judge in

ot.

lusion
attempted to outline for you the human issues which | believe the Judicial Branch, with
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your assistance, should tackle in this next biennium; a report on the development of those
programs which are currently in progress in the Judicial Branch, and finally, an outline of the
pragmatic needs of the court system which support and make possible the programs which
directly affect the citizens of our state.

"2utenant Governor Dalrympie, Speaker Monson, and members of the Legislative Assembly, |
2ak for my colleagues, the trial judges and the justices of the Supreme Court, when | thank
u for you consideration and support of the Judicial Branch. We are all, legistators, Governor,
gislative Branch officials, judges, privileged to be engaged in the great endeavor to make our
system of government one that serves the citizens and one the citizens respect. The genius of
our form of government is that individually none of us could begin to achieve what, together, we
can and will accomplish. | am grateful for the opportunity te speak with you this afternoon. |
wish you wisdom and good fortune as you begin the Sixty-first Session of the Legislative
Assembly of the State of North Dakota.

Jim W. Smith

Director

North Dakota Legislative Council
Bismarck ND 58505
701.328.2916
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Phone j‘ (701) 328-2231

Toll Free  (800) 242-7535
Fax (701) 328-4567

Roger Johnson
Agriculture Commissioner
www.agdepartment.com

Department of

| Agncultu re

Testimony of Jeff Weispfenning
SB2425
Senate Government and
Veterans Affairs Committee
Fort Union Room
March 13, 2009

Chairman Grande and members of the House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee, I am
Jeff Weispfenning with the Department of Agriculture. [ am here in support of SB2425, which
provides for a recommendation to the Legislative Council regarding state agency space needs by

October 1, 2010.

We are a relatively small state agency—we are currently authorized for 67.5 FTEs. Of those 67.5
. FTE’s, 33.5 FTEs are located in the Capitol on 6™ floor and 7 FTE’s are located on 14" floor. In
addition, we currently have one temporary front desk employee and one marketing intern on 6"
floor. We have three FTE’s located in offices at NDSU in Fargo, and one ag mediation FTE
works out of a field office at McVille. The remaining FTEs are field inspectors and ag mediation

negotiators, who work out of their homes.

Our space needs have grown signiﬁcantly, especially since 1995. The 1995 Législature moved
three Registration Division FTEs from the Health Department and three Board of Animal Health
FTEs into the Ag Department. Since then, an increased awareness of livestock health concerns at
both state and federal levels has resulted in the Legislature adding five FTEs to respond to these

issues.

The 1999 Legislature established the State Meat Inspection Program which has added two
additional staff in the Capitol and ten field inspectors. The 1999 Legislature also added a position
to deal with pesticide harmonization, and the 2007 Legislature added 1.5 FTEs to focus on



endangered species work. Federal funds have also added a Plant Protection FTE to deal with

increased plant disease risks.

To deal with the increasingly cramped office spaces, we moved some staff to 14" floor in
January 2002. Storage vaults and laboratory space were converted to offices. We now face a
shortage of office space, and we have no lab space available for use by the State Meat Inspection

Program, the Plant Protection staff, the Board of Animal Health and Pesticide Regulatory stafT.

Our agency needs additional space for the current employees in the Capitol. We also need
additional space to provide basic laboratory space for our meat inspection program, our pesticide
regulatory program and our plant protection program. We also need work space for our field staff
who routinely visit the office, but have nowhere to do job related functions. As you can see from
the attached photos, we are extremely crowded, and we have people performing laboratory job

functions at their desks.

Our current situation is less than ideal, and as a result we requested $400,000 ($220,000 of
general funds) to move out of the Capitol as our highest priority budget enhancement. The
Governor recognized our space concerns and recommended $120,000 of general funds in his
budget. The Governor was unwilling to be the one to suggest that a constitutionally elected

official be moved out of the Capitol.

We were very close to moving some of our staff to another location in early 2007. However, our
analysis showed that moving part of our staff to a location away from the Capitol would resuit in
duplicate expenditures for equipment and staff and overall inefficiencies in working between two

locations.

We view this report as a long overdue first step to respond to inadequate space for state

agencies—a problem that we and many other state agencies face.

Chairman Grande and committee members, 1 urge your “do pass” on SB2425. I would be happy

to answer any questions you may have.
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Pesticide Program Specialist Angela Keller removes intestinal samples from a fish
(above) and a bird (below) on her desk in the North Dakota Department of Agri-

culture, located on the sixth floor of the State Capitol. The samples are tested for
traces of pesticides.
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Dr. Andrea Grondahl, director
of the State Meat and Poultry
Inspection Program, innoculates
a petri dish with a bacteria-laden
swab and a swab from the kid-
neys and other offal on her desk.
At right, the innoculated petri
dish is kept in an incubator. Her
office is on the sixth floor of the
State Capitol.




Plant Protection Specialist Carrie Larson uses her 14th floor office for a laboratory. con-
ducting examinations of plant material for insects and disease.

Printers, fax machines
and file cabinets crowd
a former office on the
14th floor.
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State Entomologist Dave Nelson keeps grain samples in opén pans on any
available space prior to inspecting them for phytosanitary inspection.

Computer equipment and
supplies have long over-
flowed available storage
space on the sixth floor.
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rage vault was converted into three small offices,

Because the department’s sixth floor sto

many NDDA staff keep their equipment, supplies and records under their desks.
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TESTIMONY #7
- SENATE BILL 2425

HOUSE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
REPRESENTATIVE GRANDE, CHAIRMAN

MARCH 13, 2009

Chairman Grande, members of the Government and Veterans Affairs
Committee, I am Brenda M. Weisz, Chief Financial Officer of the
Department of Human Services. I am here today to provide you with
information relative to the space the Department leases in Bismarck,
including the space within the Judicial Wing of the Capitol.

Within Bismarck we currently have leases in place for just over 84,000
square feet outside of the Judicial Wing. Of this space, just over
40,700 square feet is dedicated to our West Central Human Service

. Center for our regional mental health clinic. The rent we pay varies
from $11.66 to $16.00 per square foot. Qur divisions located within
the Judicial Wing occupy just over 30,000 square feet with a projected
rental rate of $8.97 per square foot for the 2009 - 2011 biennium.
The current office space needs for the Department of Human Services
within Bismarck is just over 73,000 square feet.

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any
questions.



